
 

 

 

Date: August 14, 2025 

 

To, 

Listing Compliance Department  

National Stock Exchange of India Limited  

Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G,  

Bandra Kurla Complex,  

Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400 051.  

 

Scrip Code: INFLUX 

 

Dear Sir/Madam,  

 

Sub: Notice of 5th Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for the Financial Year 2024-2025  

Ref: Regulation 34 (1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 

In compliance with Regulation 34 (1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, please find enclosed herewith the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 

2024-2025, to be approved and adopted by the Members of the Company in the 5th Annual General Meeting 

to be held on Tuesday, September 9, 2025, at 12:00 P.M. through video conferencing (“VC”) /other Audio 

- Visual Means (“OAVM”). 

 

The Notice along with the Annual Report will be sent to the registered email-ids of the Shareholders who 

holds shares of the company as on August 8, 2025, being the cut-off date for dispatch of Notice and Annual 

Report. The same is also available on the website of the Company at www.influxhealthtech.com   

 

Key Information relating to AGM are as under: 

 

Date and time of AGM Tuesday, September 9, 2025, at 12:00 P.M. 

Mode of Meeting VC/ OAVM 

Cut-off date for e-voting Wednesday, September 3, 2025 

E-voting start date and time September 6, 2025-09:00 A.M 

E-voting end date and time September 8, 2025-05:00 P.M 

 

http://www.influxhealthtech.com/


 

 

 

Further, Kindly note that the equity shares of the Company are listed on the NSE Emerge (SME) Platform. 

Accordingly, in terms of Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, Regulation 24A concerning Secretarial Auditor and Secretarial Compliance Report is not 

applicable to companies listed on the SME Exchange. Consequently, the Company is not required to take 

approval of shareholders at the said Annual General Meeting for appointment of Secretarial Auditor. 

However, The Audit Committee and the Board would consider the appointment of Secretarial auditor for 

FY 2025-26 in due course and the same would be intimated accordingly. 

 

Please take the same on your records. 

  

Thanking You, 

 

For, Influx Healthtech Limited 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Managing Director 

DIN: 08459582 

 

Enclosure: Annual Report for financial year 2024-2025 
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GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

Board of Directors: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name DIN Category Designation Date of 

Appointment 

1 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee 

Chandniwala 

08459582 Executive Chairman & 

Managing 

Director 

September 28, 

2020 

2 Mrs. Shirin Munir 

Ahmed Chandniwala 

08459623 Executive Whole-time 

Director 

September 28, 

2020 

3 Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul 

Rasul Chandniwala 

09573672 Non- 

Executive 

Director April 18, 2022 

4 Mr. Vipul Balubhai 

Patel 

08091260 Non- 

Executive 

Independent 

Director 

June 11, 2024 

5 Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 00251096 Non- 

Executive 

Independent 

Director 

July 26, 2024 

 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

 

Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer: 

Mr. Atul Kumar Ashok Kumar Shukla 

(Appointed w.e.f. May 2, 2024) 

Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Ashish Ghanshyam Shah 

(Appointed w.e.f. May 2, 2024) 

Statutory Auditors: M/s V.B. Goel & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Mumbai 

(Appointed w.e.f. September 30, 2024) 

Banker: HDFC Bank Limited 
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REGISTERED OFFICE: 

 

109, Ghanshyam Enclave Premises Co-op Soc Plot 

No. 856, Laljipada, Kandivali West, Mumbai - 

400067 Maharashtra, India. 

Email: cs@influxhealthtech.com 

Website:  www.influxhealthtech.com  

CIN: L24299MH2020PLC346825 

REGISTRAR AND  

SHARE TRANSFER AGENT: 

Maashitla® Securities Private Limited 

451, Krishna Apra Business Square Netaji Subhash 

Place, Pitampura, North west, New Delhi, Delhi - 

110034, India 

Email:  contact@maashitla.com  

Contact Number: 011-45121798 

Website:  www.maashitla.com  

SEBI Registration No.: INR000004370 
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NOTICE OF 5th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Fifth (5th) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Influx Healthtech Limited to be 
held on Tuesday, September 9, 2025, at 12:00 P.M. IST through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio-
Visual Means (“OAVM”) facility to transact the following businesses. to transact the following businesses: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:  
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone Audited Financial Statements of the Company 

for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, and the reports of the Board of Directors and 

Auditors thereon: 

 

In this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as Ordinary Resolution; 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended on 

March 31, 2025, and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the 

members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 

 

2. To appoint Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala (DIN 09573672) as a Director of the 

Company, who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

 
In this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as Ordinary Resolution; 

 
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala (DIN 09573672), who retires 

by rotation at this meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.” 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS:  

 

3. To give approval for related party transaction for F.Y. 2025-26. 

 

In this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 

resolutions as Special Resolution; 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 2(76), Section 177 and Section 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, read with applicable rules the Members of the Company hereby approve the 

omnibus approval granted by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, for Related Party 

Transaction(s) to be entered into during the financial year 2025-26, as more particularly described 

in the Explanatory Statement annexed to this Notice.” 
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors of the company be and are hereby authorized to 

approve such transactions on case-to-case basis within the approved limit and do all such acts, deed, 

matters and things as may be necessary to give effect to the foregoing resolution.”   

 

4. To Approve Procurement of Machinery form Vendors Without Variation in Objects Stated in 

the Prospectus.  

 

In this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 

resolutions as Special Resolution; 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, including any statutory 

modifications or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force, the consent of the members be 

and is hereby accorded to enable the Company to procure the machinery as disclosed in the 

prospectus dated June 23, 2025, from vendors other than those originally named in the said 

prospectus, if such additional vendors offer more competitive pricing, better quality, or more 

favorable commercial terms, as detailed in the explanatory statement annexed hereto.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT this resolution shall not result in any change in the nature, quantity, or 

specification of the machinery to be procured, and the procurement shall remain strictly in line with 

the objects and disclosures made in the prospectus, except for the change in vendors based on 

quotation evaluation.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to 

evaluate, negotiate, and finalize procurement of the machinery from such additional vendors, and to 

do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary or expedient, including execution of 

contracts, placement of purchase orders, filing of necessary forms with regulatory authorities, and 

intimation to stock exchange(s), for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.” 

 

 

 

 

Registered Office: 
109, Ghanshyam Enclave Premises Co-op Soc Plot No. 
856, Laljipada, Kandivali West, Mumbai - 400067 
Maharashtra, India. 
 
 
Date: August 14, 2025 
Place: Mumbai 

By Order of the Board of Directors of  
Influx Healthtech Limited 
 
 
Sd/- 

Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Chairman and Managing Director 

DIN: 08459582 
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IMPORTANT NOTES 

 

1. In compliance with General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 

2020, 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, 33/2020 dated September 28, 2020, 39/2020 dated December 

31, 2020, 10/2021 dated June 23, 2021, 20/2021 dated December 08, 2021, 10/2022 dated 

December 28, 2022, 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 and 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 

issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) and SEBI/HO/CFD/CFDPoD- 2/P/CIR/2023/167 

dated October 07, 2023 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (hereinafter collectively 

referred to as “Circulars”), the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), the 5th 

(Fifth) Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM without the 

physical presence of Members at a common venue. The deemed venue for the 5th (Fifth) AGM will be 

the Registered Office of the Company– 109, Ghanshyam Enclave Premises Co-op Soc Plot No. 856, 

Laljipada, Kandivali West, Mumbai - 400067 Maharashtra, India. 

 

2. A Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and additional 

information of the Directors seeking re-appointment as required under Regulation 36(3) of the 

Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by The Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India (‘Secretarial Standard’) are annexed. 

 

3. In terms of the MCA Circulars since the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with, 

there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of appointment of proxies 

by Members under Section 105 of the Act will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form 

and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. However, in pursuance of Section 113 of the Act, 

representatives of the Institutional/Corporate Members may be appointed for the purpose of voting 

through remote e-Voting, for participation in the AGM through VC/OAVM Facility and e-Voting 

during the AGM. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through 

its registered email address to info@csnayan.com with a copy marked to contact@maashitla.com. 

 

4. The attendance of the Members participating in the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 

purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. In case of joint 

holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register 

of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 

 

5. In line with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, the notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 

are being sent only by electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with 

the Company/Depositories. Members may please note that this Notice and Annual Report will also 

be available on the Company’s website www.influxhealthtech.com, website of the Stock Exchange i.e., 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com and also on the website of the RTA 

at www.maashitla.com. 

 

6. Since the AGM is being held through VC/OAVM Facility, the route map of the venue of the Meeting is 

not annexed hereto. 

mailto:info@csnayan.com
mailto:contact@maashitla.com
http://www.influxhealthtech.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
http://www.maashitla.com/
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7. The Members may join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode thirty (30) Minutes before the scheduled time 

of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in this Notice. 
 

8. As no shares were held in Physical Form, closure of the Register of Members and Share Transfer 

Books of the Company will not applicable pursuant to section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regulation 42 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
9. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended), Secretarial Standard on General 

Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) and Regulation 44 of 

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, read with SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/ CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 

December 09, 2020, the Company is providing remote e- Voting facility to its Members in respect of 

the business to be transacted at the AGM and facility for those Members participating in the AGM to 

cast vote through e-Voting system during the AGM. 

 

10. The Company has availed the services of Central Depository Services (India) Limited, as the 

authorized agency for conducting of the AGM through VC/OAVM and providing e- Voting facility. 
 

11. The e-voting period commences on Saturday, September 6, 2025 (9:00 A.M. IST) and ends on 

Monday, September 8, 2025 (5:00 P.M. IST). The e-voting module will be disabled by Central 

Depository Services (India) Limited thereafter. The voting rights of members shall be proportionate 

to their share of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, i.e. September 

3, 2025. 

 

12.  Members joining the meeting through VC/OAVM, who have not already cast their vote by means of 

remote e-Voting, shall be able to exercise their right to vote through e-Voting at the AGM. The 

Members who have cast their vote by remote e-Voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but 

shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

 

13. A person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice of AGM for information 

purpose only. 
 

14. A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners 

maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date i.e. September 3, 2025 only shall be entitled to 

avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as e-voting at the AGM.  
 

15. The Board of Directors have appointed M/s. Pitroda Nayan & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries 

(Membership No. FCS: 58473, COP: 23912) as Scrutinizer for the e-Voting process. The Scrutinizer 

shall, after the conclusion of AGM, unblock the votes in the presence of at least two witnesses who 

are not in employment of the Company and shall within a period of 2 (Two) working days from the 
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conclusion of the AGM, prepare a Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, 

and submit it to the Chairman of the meeting. 

 

16. The results of the e-Voting will be declared within 2 (Two) working days from the conclusion of the 

AGM. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s 

website at www.influxhealthtech.com and on the website of Central Depository Services (India) 

Limited and shall be communicated to National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). 

 

17. The register of directors and key managerial personnel (KMP) and their shareholding, maintained 

under Section 170 of the Act, and the register of contracts or arrangements in which the directors 

are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will be available electronically for inspection 

by the members during the AGM. All documents referred to the Notice will also be available for 

electronic inspection without any fee from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM. 

Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to cs@influxhealthtech.com. 

 
18. Procedure for Remote e-Voting: 

 

Procedure for Login for e-Voting and Attending AGM through VC/OAVM for Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in Demat mode. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 09, 2020, on e-Voting facility 

provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode are allowed to 

vote through their Demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their Demat accounts to access 

e-Voting facility. 

 

http://www.influxhealthtech.com/
mailto:cs@influxhealthtech.com
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THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS 

UNDER: 

 

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders 

holding shares in demat mode.  

 

(i) The voting period begins on Saturday, September 6, 2025 (9:00 A.M. IST) and ends on Monday, 

September 8, 2025 (5:00 P.M. IST). During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares 

either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of Wednesday, 

September 3, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL 

for voting thereafter. 

 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 

meeting venue. 

 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under 

Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to 

its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the 

participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.  

 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed 

entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs 

and passwords by the shareholders.  

 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been 

decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, 

through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat 

account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, 

thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of 

participating in e-voting process.  

 

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020, 

on e -Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 

Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 

their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

Pursuant to the above-said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for 

Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below: 
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Type of 

shareholders 

 Login Method 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities 

in Demat mode 

with CDSL 

Depository 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 

existing user id and password. The option will be made available to reach e-

Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login to Easi / 

Easiest are requested to visit cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and click on 

login icon & My Easi New (Token) Tab. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 

option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the 

information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user 

will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access 

the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-

Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & My Easi New (Token) 

Tab and then click on registration option. 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 

Account Number and PAN No. from an e-Voting link available 

on  www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by 

sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. 

After successful authentication, users will be able to see the e-Voting option 

where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system 

of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities 

in demat mode 

with NSDL 

Depository 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-

Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” 

icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen 

will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful 

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to 

e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. 

Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be 

re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during 

the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 

meeting. 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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“Portal or click   at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will be opened. You will have 

to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat account number hold 

with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository 

site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 

service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 

provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

4) For OTP based login you can click 

on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You 

will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification 

code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered email 

id/mobile number and click on login. After successful authentication, you 

will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting 

page. Click on the company name or e-Voting service provider name and 

you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities in 

demat mode) 

login through 

their Depository 

Participants 

(DP) 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 

your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  

After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click 

on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site 

after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click 

on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be 

redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during 

the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 

meeting. 

  

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID 

and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

 

 

 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

     

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat 

mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 

toll free no. 1800 21 09911 

  

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat 

mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at: 022 - 4886 7000 

and 022 - 2499 7000 

 

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of non-individual shareholders holding shares in 

demat mode. 

 

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for shareholders other than individual 

holding in Demat form. 

 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

 

2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 

 

3) Now enter your User ID  

 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company. 

 

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

 

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on 

an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  

 

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 
 

 

 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www.evotingindia.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/
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 For shareholders other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat. 

PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for 

both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 

• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 

Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or 

contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 

Bank 

Details 

 OR Date 

of Birth 

(DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in 

your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the 

member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field. 

 

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they 

are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that 

this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company 

on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. 

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care 

to keep your password confidential. 

 

(viii) Click on the EVSN for the Influx Healthtech Limited on which you choose to vote. 

 

(ix) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 

“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent 

to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 

(x) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 

(xi) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box 

will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on 

“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

 

(xii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

(xiii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting 

page. 

 

(xiv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password, then Enter the User ID and the image 

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 
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(xv) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available 

to scrutinizer for verification. 

 

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required 

to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module. 

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed 

to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

• The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any 

wrong mapping. 

• It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which 

they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system 

for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

• Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board 

Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 

signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 

cs@influxhealthtech.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-

voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

   

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING 

DURING THE MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

 

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions 

mentioned above for e-voting. 

 

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be 

displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting. 

  

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. 

However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

 

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience. 

 

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid 

any disturbance during the meeting. 

 

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 

respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate 

any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:cs@influxhealthtech.com
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7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register 

themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 2 days prior to meeting 

mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 

cs@influxhealthtech.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have 

queries may send their queries in advance 2 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat 

account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at cs@influxhealthtech.com. These queries 

will be replied to by the company suitably by email.  

 

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express 

their views/ask questions during the meeting. 

 

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted 

their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, 

shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM. 

 

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the 

same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes 

cast by such shareholders may be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is 

available only to the shareholders attending the meeting. 

 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 

COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

 

11. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, 

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), 

AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id i.e. 

cs@influxhealthtech.com and contact@maashitla.com. 

 

12. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 

Participant (DP)  

 

13. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your 

respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual 

meetings through Depository. 

 

mailto:cs@influxhealthtech.com
mailto:cs@influxhealthtech.com
mailto:cs@influxhealthtech.com
mailto:contact@maashitla.com
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Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 

Item No.03: To give approval for related party transaction for F.Y. 2025-26. 

 

Pursuant to Sections 2(76), 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the Audit Committee and Board 

of Directors has granted omnibus approval for certain related-party transactions to be entered into by the 

Company during the financial year 2025-26. As required under Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and in terms of Section 188 of the Act, the details of such 

transactions are set out below for shareholders’ approval. 

 

The omnibus approval will enable the Company to enter into transactions in the ordinary course of business 

and at arm’s length basis, thereby ensuring operational flexibility and reducing the need to seek fresh 

approval for each individual transaction, subject to the limits set out below and compliance with applicable 

law. 

 

Name of the 

related party 

Relation Nature & 

Type of 

Transaction 

(in Rs.) 

Maximum 

Value of 

transactions 

(in Rs.) 

Period of 

Transaction 

Basis 

Mr. Munir Abdul 

Ganee Chandniwala 

Chairman 

and 

Managing 

Director  

Rent 

receivable on 

the premises 

of registered 

office of the 

Company 

1,10,00,000/- FY 2025-26 Based on the 

Leave and 

License 

agreement 

entered into 

between the 

company and 

Mr. Munir 

Abdul Ganee 

Chandniwala 

Mr. Munir Abdul 

Ganee Chandniwala 

Chairman 

and 

Managing 

Director 

Purchase of 

Plot No. 59 

1,50,00,000/- FY 2025-26 As Per The 

MOU entered 

between the 

company and 

Mr. Munir 

Abdul Ganee 

Chandniwala 

and Mrs. 

Shirin Munir 

Ahmed 

Chandniwala 

Mr. Munir Abdul 

Ganee Chandniwala 

Chairman 

and 

Purchase of 

Plot No. 28 

69,00,000/- FY 2025-26 As per the 

MOU entered 

between the 
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Managing 

Director 

company and 

Mr. Munir 

Abdul ganee 

Chandniwala 

and Mrs. 

Shirin Munir 

Ahmed 

Chandniwala 

Mr. Munir Abdul 

Ganee Chandniwala 

Chairman 

and 

Managing 

Director 

Remuneration 96,00,000/- FY 2025-26 As per 

Regulation 23 

of the SEBI 

(Listing 

Obligation and 

Disclosure 

requirements) 

Regulations, 

2015 

Mrs. Shirin Munir 

Ahmed 

Chandniwala 

Whole-time 

Director 

Remuneration 24,00,000/- FY 2025-26 As per 

Regulation 23 

of the SEBI 

(Listing 

Obligation and 

Disclosure 

requirements) 

Regulations, 

2015 

Trusan Printpack 

Private Limited 

Group Entity Sales of 

Product 

2,50,000/- FY 2025-26 As per the 

order received 

by the Entity 

Trusan Printpack 

Private 

Group Entity Purchase of 

Product 

3,50,00,000/- FY 2025-26 As per the 

requirement 

arise in the 

company 

Trusan Printpack 

Private 

Group Entity Rent Income 3,60,000/- FY 2025-26 As per the rent 

Agreement 

entered 

between the 

company and 

Trusan 

Printpack 

Private 

Limited 
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Nutrapharm India Group Entity Sales of 

Product  

1,00,000/- FY 2025-26 As per the 

order received 

by the Entity 

Influx Foundation  Group Entity Donation 2,00,000/- FY 2025-26  

 

The transactions will be entered into in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. The Audit 

Committee and the Board have reviewed and approved the transactions and are of the opinion that they are 

in the best interest of the Company. 

 

The Board recommends the resolution for the approval of the shareholders as a Special Resolution. 

 

ITEM No.04: To Approve Procurement of Machinery form Vendors Without Variation in Objects 

Stated in the Prospectus. 

 

The Company, pursuant to its public issue and as disclosed in its prospectus dated June 23, 2025, had 

proposed to procure certain machinery from specified vendors for its expansion and operational 

enhancement plans. The procurement of the machinery was a part of the object of the issue and the vendors 

identified in the prospectus were based on then-available quotations and market analysis. 

Subsequent to the filing of the prospectus, the Company has invited additional quotations from other reputed 

vendors for supply of the same machinery, with identical technical specifications and quality standards. 

Upon evaluation, it has been observed that certain vendors, not named in the prospectus, have submitted 

quotations that are more cost-effective. These revised quotations, along with the names of the additional 

vendors and machinery specifications, have been reviewed and are annexed to this statement for the 

information of the members. 

The details of the additional vendors along with Quotations are as follows: 

Sr. 
No. 

Description Quantity Basic Cost 
(Estimated) 
(₹ in lakhs) 

Name of 
Supplier 

Date of 
Quotation 

1 Dog Food Making Plant 

Along with: 

i. Boiler 1.5 TPH IBR 

ii. Chimney / Erection of 

Boiler 

iii. Transformer 600kva 

1 348.34 M/s Unitech July 9, 2025  

 

The quotation is 

valid for 280 

days from date of 

quotation. 

2 Detergent Soap Plant & 

Machinery 

i. Mixer 

ii. Three Roll Mill 

iii. Single Screw Plodder 

iv. Soap Stamping and 

Cutting 

1 25.00 Novus Nextech 

Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 

days from date of 

quotation. 
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Machine 

v. Conveyor 

vi. Flow rapping machine 

3 Hydraulic Lifting Vacuum 

Emulsifying Mixer 

i. 500L Hydraulic Lifting 

Vacuum Emulsifying Mixer 

ii. Stainless Steel Pipes and 

Fittings 

1 39.90 Novus Nextech 
Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 

days from date of 

quotation. 

4 Ampoule Fill & Seal 

Machine 

i. GGS-118(P2) Plastic 

Ampoule Fill & Seal 

Machine 

1 20.60 Novus Nextech 

Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 

days from date of 

quotation. 

5 Sachet Machine 

i. Card Sachet Packing 

Machine (3 Nozzle with 

One Horizontal Hopper) 

ii. Hard film with 1 color 

printing 

iii. Soft film with 3 colors 

printing 

iv. Cylinder cost for film 

printing 

1 47.70 Novus Nextech 

Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 

days from date of 

quotation. 

6 Automatic Lipstick 

Production 

Line 

i. 12 Nozzles Hot Filling 

Machine 

ii. Freezing Tunnel 

iii. Lipstick Demould 

Machine 

1 38.80 Novus Nextech 

Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 

days from date of 

quotation. 

7 Automatic Nail Polish 

Filling and 

Capping Machine 

B-YX2 Automatic Nail 

Polish Filling 

and Capping Machine 

1 22.70 Novus Nextech 

Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 

days from date of 

quotation. 

8 High Speed 

Liquid/Viscous Multi 

Lane &amp; Special 

Shape Auto 

1 67.30 Novus Nextech 

Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 
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Machine 

DC-680 High Speed Liquid 

/ Viscous 

Multi Lane & Special Shape 

Auto 

Packaging Machine 

days from date of 

quotation. 

9 Oral Dissolving Film 

i. Oral Dissolving Film 

Making Machine with 

Slitting function 

ii. Automatic ODF Strips 

Pouch Packing Machine 

1 181.60 Novus Nextech 

Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 

days from date of 

quotation. 

10 Beverage Mixing System 

i. Sugar pasteurization 

melting system (Capacity 

1T/H) 

ii. Beverage mixing system 

(Capacity 2T/H) 

iii. Homogenizing system 

(Capacity 2T/H) 

iv. Sterilizing system 

(Capacity 2T/H) 

v. CIP cleaning system 

vi. Auxiliaries 

1 113.30 Novus Nextech 

Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 

days from date of 

quotation. 

11 Pet Bottle Filling and 

Packaging Line 

i. Washing filling capping 3 

in 1 

ii. Empty cap feeding 

iii. Drink pasteurization 

and 

cooling (8 sq. m.) 

iv. Sleeving system 

1 95.00 Novus Nextech 

Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 

days from date of 

quotation. 

12 Tetra Pack line 

i. Tetra pack type machine 

ii. Straw applicator 

iii. Plate type UHT Capacity: 

1T/h 

1 124.60 Novus Nextech 

Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 

days from date of 

quotation. 

13 Jar Filling Line 

i. Automatic bottles feeding 

device 

ii. Automatic 4 heads ions 

1 83.00 Novus Nextech 

Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 
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air blow bottle washing 

machine 

iii. Spoons vibration feeder 

iv. Automatic powder 

filling 

machine 

v. Powder feeder 

vi. Dust removal device 

vii. Metal detector 

viii. Automatic servo 

capping machine 

ix. Extra flow track 

x. Aluminium foil sealing 

machine 

xi. Automatic round bottle 

labelling machine with 

ribbon printer 

xii. Collecting table 1.5m 

long 

days from date of 

quotation. 

14 Powder Processing line 

i. Vibro sifter 

ii. Multi Mill: 5 HP 

iii. Double cone bin blender 

1 22.20 Novus Nextech 

Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 

days from date of 

quotation. 

15 Pouch Filling Line (VFFS) 

i. Vibro sifter 

ii. Multi Mill: 3 HP 

iii. Double cone bin blender 

1 15.70 Novus Nextech 

Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 

days from date of 

quotation. 

16 Powder Filling Line 

(downstream) 

i. Powder Packing machine 

ii. Extra metering screw 

material contact part 

SS316 

iii. Date printer 

iv. Screw auger conveyor 

(loading powder to 

hopper automatically) 

Metal detector 

1 24.00 Novus Nextech 

Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 

days from date of 

quotation. 
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17 Protein Bar Production 

Line 

i. Syrup heater (200L) 

ii. Mixer 

iii. Elevator 

iv. Ceral bar forming, 

cooling, Slitting machine 

v. 180° turning machine 

vi. 600 Chocolate enrobing 

line with 14M cooling 

tunnel 

vii. 500L Chocolate melting 

tank (with heating pipes) 

viii. Chocolate transfer 

pump 

ix. Control System 

1 141.50 Novus Nextech 

Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 

days from date of 

quotation. 

18 Puffed Food Production 

Line: Protein Snacking 

i. Flour Mixer 

ii. Screw Conveyor 

iii. Double Screw Extruder 

iv. Driving & Extruding 

System 

v. Cutting System 

vi. Control System 

vii. Big Hoist 

viii. Three-Layer Roaster 

ix. Flavoring System 

x. Packaging Machine (Cup 

type) 

1 68.10 Novus Nextech 

Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 

days from date of 

quotation. 

19 Popp rice cake 

production line 

i. Rice Cake Machine 

ii. Belt Conveyor 

iii. Double Drum Flavoring 

Machine 

1 45.90 Novus Nextech 

Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 

days from date of 

quotation. 

20 Tablet Section 

i. Tablet press machine 

ii. Effervescent tube filling 

machine 

1 113.80 Novus Nextech 

Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 

days from date of 

quotation. 
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21 Water System 

i. Reverse Osmosis Water 

Purification System 

(Capacity 4T/Hour) 

ii. Pre-filter system 

(Capacity 8T/H): 

iii. RO system (Capacity 

4T/H): 

iv. UV sterilizer 

v. Pure water Storage tank: 

3000liter 

1 36.10 Novus Nextech 

Private Limited 

August 6, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 180 

days from date of 

quotation. 

22 Tablet Section  

o Tablet press machine 

1 68.52 Helios Concrew 

Private Limited 

August 2, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for 90 days 

from date of 

quotation. 

23 Beverage Mixing System 

i. Sugar pasteurization 

melting system (Capacity 

1T/H) 

ii. Beverage mixing system 

(Capacity 2T/H) 

iii. Homogenizing system 

(Capacity 2T/H) 

iv. Sterilizing system 

(Capacity 2T/H) 

v. CIP cleaning system 

vi. Auxiliaries 

1 76.70 M/s Ambica 

Engineers 

July 23, 2025 

 

The quotation is 

valid for a period 

of 6 months from 

date of this 

quotation. 

 

The Board believes that considering alternate vendors for the same machinery where quotations are more 

competitive is in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders, as it results in optimal utilization of 

public issue proceeds. 

 

In view of the above, the approval of the members is being sought to authorize the Company to procure 

machinery as stated in the prospectus from additional vendors not originally named, based on evaluation of 

quotations and commercial feasibility. 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are concerned or interested, financially 

or otherwise, in the said resolution except to the extent of their shareholding. 

 

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution as set out in the Notice for approval of the shareholders 

as a Special Resolution. 
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

 

Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting 

[In pursuance of Clause 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 

2015] 

 

Information about the directors who are proposed to be appointed/ re‐appointed at the 5th Annual General Meeting 

as per regulation 36(3) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and SS-2 Secretarial Standard on general meetings issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India forming part of the notice convening the annual general meeting of the company. 

 

Particulars Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

Director Identification Number 09573672 

Date of Birth September 03, 1951 

Age 73 years 

Justification for Appointment Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala is proposed to 

be re-appointed by considering his leadership role in the 

business of the company. 

Educational Qualification. Diploma of Licentiate of the Court of Examiners of 

Homeopathic & and Biochemic Systems of Medicine from 

the Court of Examiners of Homeopathic and Biochemic 

Systems of Medicine 

Experience (No. of Years) 21 Years 

Business field in which Experience. Pharmaceutical industry 

Date of Initial Appointment April 18, 2022 

Directorship held in any other Company. Nil 

Member of any Committees of the Directors in 

the Company. 

Nomination And Remuneration Committee 

Member of any committees of the Directors in 

other Companies with names of the Company. 

Nil 

No. of Shares held as on August 8, 2025 in the 

company 

726 Shares 

Relationship with other Directors/KMPs He is the Father of Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala, 

Chairman and Managing Director and Father-in-law of Mrs.  

Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala, Whole Time Director of 

the Company. 
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Registered Office: 
109, Ghanshyam Enclave Premises Co-op Soc Plot No. 
856, Laljipada, Kandivali West, Mumbai - 400067 
Maharashtra, India. 
 
 
Date: August 14, 2025 
Place: Mumbai 

By Order of the Board of Directors of  
Influx Healthtech Limited 
 
 
Sd/- 

Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Chairman and Managing Director 

DIN: 08459582 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

To Members, 

Influx Healthtech Limited 

 

Your directors have pleasure to present the 5th (Fifth) Director’s Report together with the Audited Statement 

of Accounts of Influx Healthtech Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

 

The financial results of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 as compared with the previous Financial 

Year are as under: 

(Rs. in lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars Financial Year ended 

31/03/2025 

Financial Year ended 

31/03/2024 

Revenue from Operations 10,485.36 9,996.51 

Other Income 13.31 5.09 

Total Income 10,498.68 10,001.60 

Total Expenses 8,727.27 8,508.09 

Profit/(loss) before Tax (EBT) 1,771.41 1,493.51 

Provision for Income Tax  

(i) Current Tax  

(ii) Deferred Tax  

(iii) Short/Excess Provision for Income Tax 

 

440.99 

10.32 

(7.22) 

 

417.66 

(29.96) 

- 

Net Profit/(Loss) After Tax 1,327.32 1,105.80 

EPS 7.31 6.09 

 

2. STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 

 

The Company is engaged in the development and manufacturing of a diverse range of healthcare products, 

including dietary and nutritional supplements (tablets, capsules, soft gels, liquid orals, oral powders, 

effervescent tablets, gummies), cosmetic and personal care formulations (creams, gels, external oils, soaps), 

Ayurvedic and herbal products, veterinary feed supplements, and homecare items, all produced in GMP, 

HACCP, ISO 22000, Halal and US FDA registered facilities to ensure stringent quality control and regulatory 

compliance. There has been no change in the nature of the Company’s business during the financial year 

ended March 31, 2025. 

 

The highlights of the Company’s performance are as under: 

i. Revenue from operations for the year ended on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is INR 10,485.36 

Lakhs and INR 9,996.51 Lakhs.  

ii. Other incomes for the year ended for the year ended on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is INR 

13.31 Lakhs and INR 5.09 Lakhs.  

iii. Net profit for the year ended for the year ended on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is INR 

1,327.32 Lakhs and INR 1,105.80 Lakhs. 
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3. RESERVES  

 

The Board of Directors have decided to retain the entire amount of profit under Retained Earnings. 

 

4. DIVIDEND  

 

To conserve the resources for future growth of the company, your directors do not propose any dividend for 

the current year. Your Company’s policy on Dividend Distribution is available at 

https://influxhealthtech.com/investor-relations/ 

 

5. HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES  

 

The Company does not have any Holding, Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company. 

 

6. SHARE CAPITAL 

 

The Authorised Share Capital as on March 31, 2025 was INR 25,00,00,000/- divided into 2,50,00,000 Equity 

Shares of INR 10/- each. 

The Paid-up share capital as on March 31, 2025 was INR 18,15,00,000/- divided into 1,81,50,000 Equity 

Shares of INR 10/- each. 

 

➢ Increase in Authorised Share Capital: 

 

The Company has Increased the Authorised Share Capital of the company from INR 10,00,00,000/-to INR 

25,00,00,000/- divided into 2,50,00,000 Equity shares of INR 10/- each vide Shareholder’s resolution 

passed on April 04, 2024. 

 

➢ Increase Paid Up Share Capital: 

 

During the year, your company had issued bonus shares in the ratio of 725:1 i.e. Seven hundred and 

twenty-five new equity Shares of INR 10/- each for every one equity share of INR 10/- each fully paid up 

vide Allotment resolution dated July 31, 2024. Post Issuance of bonus Share, The Paid-up share capital of 

the company was INR 18,15,00,000/-. 

 

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER (“IPO”) AND LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES 

 

The Company conducted its initial public offering (IPO) of 61,00,800 Equity Shares, each with a face value of 

₹ 10/- in accordance with SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018. The shares 

were offered at a price of ₹ 96/- per share, including a premium of ₹ 86/- per share. 

 

https://influxhealthtech.com/investor-relations/
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The IPO was open for subscription from June 18, 2025, to June 20, 2025. The shares were allotted to 

applicants on June 23, 2025, at the offer price of ₹ 96/- per share. The Company’s equity shares began trading 

on the SME Platform (EMERGE) of the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) from June 25, 2025.  

 

The Company, vide its Prospectus dated June 23, 2025 (“Prospectus”) raised ₹4800.38 Lakhs by issuing 

50,00,400 Fresh Equity Shares and 11,00,400 Equity Shares by way of an Offer for Sale by the selling 

shareholder, Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala. 

 

7. CHANGE IN NAME OF THE COMPANY 

 

During the year under review, Company has not changed the Name. 

 

8. CHANGE IN REGISTERED OFFICE 

 

During the year under review, the Company has not changed its Registered Office. 

 

9. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 

COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT 

 

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company 

which occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate 

and the date of the report except:  

 

The Company did come up with Initial Public Offer and had raised ₹4800.38 Lakhs by issuing 50,00,400 

Fresh Equity Shares and 11,00,400 Equity Shares by way of an Offer for Sale by the selling shareholder, Mr. 

Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala. The equity shares of the company got listed on NSE Emerge w.e.f. June 25, 

2025. 

 

10. DEPOSITS FROM PUBLIC 

 

The Company, during the year, has not invited/ accepted any deposit other than the exempted deposit as 

prescribed under the provision of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules framed there under, as amended 

from time to time. Hence there are no particulars to report about the deposit falling under Rule 8 (5) (v) and 

(vi) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 

However, during the financial year: 

i. The Company has borrowed money(ies) from Directors of the Company in pursuant to Rule 2(c)(viii) 

of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, amended from time to time, and said amount 

is not being given out of funds acquired by him/them by borrowing or accepting loans or deposits 

from others. 
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ii. The Company has repaid the loan borrowed from banking company in pursuant to Rule 2(c)(iii) of 

the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, amended from time to time. 

 

iii. There is outstanding security deposit collected from customers for the performance of the contract 

for the supply of goods or the provision of services, in accordance with Rule 2(c)(xii)(c) of the 

Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time. 

 

11. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS  

 

Loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") form 

part of the Notes to the financial statements provided in this Integrated Annual Report. 

 

12. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS 

  

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Company’s core business operations remained 

consistent. During the same period, the Company successfully expanded its product portfolio by launching 

of a new offering Ayurvedic Gummies, Oral Dissolving Powder, Pet Food for Dogs, Nutrition Toppers for Pets, 

Popped Chips, Pet Food for Cats & Nutritional Oral Gel in FY 2024-25. 

 

13. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  

 

The Management Discussion and Analysis as required in terms of the Listing Regulations is annexed to the 

report as Annexure I and is incorporated herein by reference and forms an integral part of this report. 

 

14. DETAILS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO  

 

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 

stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule, 8 of The Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014, are as follows: 

 

a). Conservation of energy-  

 

(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of 

energy 

Continuous Monitoring on electricity uses to 

reduce the misuse or wastage of electricity at 

factory and office premise 

(ii) the steps taken by the company for utilizing 

alternate sources of energy 

NIL 

(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation 

equipments 

NIL 
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b). Technology absorption- 

 

(i) the efforts made by the Company towards technology absorption NIL 

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or 

import substitution 

NIL 

(iii) The information regarding imported technology (imported during the last three years)- NIL 

 (a) the details of technology imported NIL 

 (b) the year of import NIL 

 (c) whether the technology been fully absorbed NIL 

 (d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons 

thereof 

NIL 

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development NIL 

 
Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo-  

 

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo 

during the year in terms of actual outflows are as follows: 

(Rs. In Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars Current Year 

(2024-25) 

(INR) 

Previous Year 

(2023-24) 

(INR) 

Export of Goods on F.O.B Basis 61.03 25.58 

C.I.F Value of Import - - 

Remittance of Dividend in 

Foreign Currency - - 

Expenditure in Foreign 

Currency 

27.47 2.32 

 

15. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

 

➢ Retirement by Rotation: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul 

Chandniwala, Non-Executive Director is liable to retire by rotation and is eligible to offer himself for re 

appointment. The Board recommends his re-appointment. 

 

➢ Changes in Board of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel: 

 

The following changes occurred during the year in the composition of the Board of Directors and Key 

Managerial Personnel: 
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Sr. 

No. 

Name of Director & KMP Effective 

Date of 

Change 

Nature of 

Change 

Designation 

1. Mr. Mohmad Saleh Mutvalli June 11, 2024 Appointment Additional Independent Director 

2. Mr. Vipul Balubhai Patel June 11, 2024 Appointment Additional Independent Director 

3. Mr. Mohmad Saleh Mutvalli July 13, 2024 Change in 

designation 

Independent Director 

4. Mr. Vipul Balubhai Patel July 13, 2024 Change in 

designation 

Independent Director 

5. Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain July 26, 2024 Appointment Additional Independent Director 

6. Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed 

Chandniwala 

July 26, 2024 Change in 

designation 

Executive Director 

7. Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee 

Chandniwala 

July 30, 2024 Change in 

designation 

Managing Director & Chairmen 

8. Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed 

Chandniwala 

July 30, 2024 Change in 

designation 

Whole Time Director 

9. Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain July 30, 2024 Change in 

designation 

Independent Director 

10. Mr. Mohmad Saleh Mutvalli August 07, 

2024 

Resignation Independent Director 

 

➢ Declaration by Independent Directors: 

 

Your Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors, confirming that they meet 

the criteria of independence as prescribed under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 

2013, along with the rules framed thereunder, and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as Independent Directors of the 

Company. 

 

The Independent Directors are familiarized with their roles, rights, and responsibilities, as well as with 

the nature of the industry and business model, through an induction program at the time of their 

appointment as Director. Additionally, they are kept informed through presentations on the economy 

and industry overview, key regulatory developments, strategy, and performance, which are made to the 

Directors from time to time. 

 

➢ Details of Board Meetings: 

  

During the Financial year 2024-25, Twenty-three (23) board meetings were held. The interval between 

any two meetings was well within the maximum allowed gap of 120 days.  

 

The Composition of Board of directors and the details of meetings attended by the board of directors 

during the year are given below. 
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Sr. 

No. 

Date of Board Meeting Directors Present 

1. April 1, 2024 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

2. April 8, 2024 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

3. May 2, 2024 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

4. June 11, 2024 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

5. July 12, 2024 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

6. July 26, 2024 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

7. July 30, 2024 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 

8. July 31, 2024 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 

9. August 7, 2024 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 

10 August 9, 2024 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 

Mr. Vipul Balubhai Patel 

11. August 20, 2024 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 
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Mr. Vipul Balubhai Patel 

12. September 2, 2024 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 

Mr. Vipul Balubhai Patel 

13. September 16, 2024 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 

Mr. Vipul Balubhai Patel 

14. October 4, 2024 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 

Mr. Vipul Balubhai Patel 

15. October 30, 2024 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 

Mr. Vipul Balubhai Patel 

16. December 16, 2024 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 

Mr. Vipul Balubhai Patel 

17. December 18, 2024 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 

Mr. Vipul Balubhai Patel 

18. December 23, 2024 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 

Mr. Vipul Balubhai Patel 

19. January 3, 2025 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 

Mr. Vipul Balubhai Patel 
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20. January 20, 2025 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 

Mr. Vipul Balubhai Patel 

21. January 31, 2025 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 

Mr. Vipul Balubhai Patel 

22. February 4, 2025 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 

Mr. Vipul Balubhai Patel 

23. March 25, 2025 Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul Chandniwala 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 

Mr. Vipul Balubhai Patel 

 

16. Directors’ Responsibility Statement 

 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) & 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the 

Company hereby confirm that: 

 

a) In preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed, 

along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

 

b) Such Accounting Policies have been selected and applied consistently, and judgements and estimates 

have been made that are reasonable and prudent to give a true and fair view of the Company’s state 

of affairs as on March 31, 2025, and of the Company’s profit or loss for the year ended on that date; 

 

c) Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records, in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 

d) The annual Financial Statements have been prepared on a Going Concern Basis. 

 

e) Internal financial controls have been laid down to be followed by the Company and that such internal 

financial controls were adequate and operating effectively. 
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f) Proper systems were devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

17. Board Evaluation: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations 2015, had adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its own performance and 

as well as that of its committee and individual Directors, including the chairperson of the Board. The Exercise 

was carried out through a structured evaluation process covering the various aspects of the Board’s 

functioning such as composition of board & committees, experience & competencies, performance of specific 

duties & obligations, governance issues etc.  

 

The evaluation of the independent Directors was carried out by Board, except the independent Director 

being evaluated and the evaluation of chairperson and the non-independent Directors were carried out by 

the independent Director. 

 

18. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

 

Matters of policy and other relevant and significant information are furnished regularly to the Board. To 

provide better Corporate Governance & transparency, currently, your Board has four (4) Committees viz., 

Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and 

Stakeholder Relationship Committee to investigate various aspects for which they have been constituted. 

The Board fixes the terms of reference of Committees and delegate powers from time to time. 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

The Audit Committee comprises of non-executive Independent Director and Executive Director as its 

Member. The Chairman of the committee is Independent Director. 

 

During the Financial year 2024-25, Four (4) meeting of audit committee held on September 16, 2024, 

November 7, 2024, January 20, 2025 and March 27, 2025. 

 

The Composition of Audit Committee and the details of meetings attended by members during the year are 

given below. 

 

Name of the Director Status in the  

Committee 

Nature of  

Directorship 

No. of 

committee 

Meetings Held 

& Entitled to 

Attend 

No. of 

committee 

Meetings 

Attended 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain Chairman Independent 

Director 

4 4 
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Mr. Vipul Balubhai Patel Member Independent 

Director 

4 4 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed 

Chandniwala 

Member Whole Time 

Director 

4 4 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE WHICH WERE NOT ACCEPTED BY THE BOARD 

ALONG WITH REASONS 

 

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee are accepted and implemented by the Board of 

Directors. 

 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of Independent Directors and non-executive 

Director as its member. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. 

 

During the Financial year 2024-25, One (1) meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were 

held on September 16, 2024. 

 

The Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the details of meetings attended by 

members during the year are given below. 

 

Name of the Director Status in the  

Committee 

Nature of  

Directorship 

No. of 

committee 

Meetings Held 

& Entitled to 

Attend 

No. of 

committee 

Meetings 

Attended 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain Chairman Independent 

Director 

1 1 

Mr. Vipul Balubhai Patel Member Independent 

Director 

1 1 

Mr. Abdul Ganee Abdul Rasul 

Chandniwala 

Member Non-Executive 

Director 

1 1 

 

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE  

 

The stakeholder relationship committee comprises of Managing Director, Whole-time Director and one 

Independent Director as its member. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director.  

 

During the Financial year 2024-25, One (1) meeting of Stakeholder Relationship Committee was held on 

March 31, 2025. 
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The Composition of Stakeholder and Relationship Committee and the details of meetings attended by the 

members during the year are given below: 

 

Name of the Director Status in the  

Committee 

Nature of  

Directorship 

No. of 

committee 

Meetings Held 

& Entitled to 

Attend 

No. of 

committee 

Meetings 

Attended 

Mr. Vipul Balubhai Patel Chairman Independent 

Director 

1 1 

Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee 

Chandniwala 

Member Chairman and 

Managing 

Director 

1 1 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed 

Chandniwala 

Member Whole Time 

Director 

1 1 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

 

The Corporate Social Responsibility committee comprises of Managing Director, Whole Time Director and 

one Independent Director as its member. The Chairman of the Committee is Executive Director. 

 

During the Financial year 2024-25, Two (2) meeting of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee were held 

on October 15, 2024 and February 24, 2025. 

 

The Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and the details of meetings attended by the 

members during the year are given below: 

Name of the Director Status in the  

Committee 

Nature of  

Directorship 

No. of 

committee 

Meetings Held 

& Entitled to 

Attend 

No. of 

committee 

Meetings 

Attended 

Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee 

Chandniwala 

Chairman Chairman and 

Managing 

Director 

2 2 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain Member Independent 

Director 

2 2 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed 

Chandniwala 

Member Whole Time 

Director 

2 2 

 

19. PARTICULARS REGARDING EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION 

 

During the year under review, the details of employees drawing remuneration which is in excess of the limit 

as prescribed under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(2) of the Companies 
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(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith as Annexure-

II(a). 

 

The information pertaining to section 197 read with rules 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), 2014 is annexed herewith as Annexure-II (b). 

 

20. ANNUAL RETURN  

 

The Annual return referred to in Sub Section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013, for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2025 will be placed on the website of the company at 

https://influxhealthtech.com/investor-relations/ 

 

21. STATUTORY AUDITORS’ AND AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

The Auditor, M/s V.B. Goel & Co., Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 115906W) were appointed as Statutory 

Auditor of the Company to hold office from September 30, 2024 for a term of five years in terms of Section 

139 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Further the observations of the Statutory Auditors, when read together with the relevant notes to the 

accounts and accounting policies are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comment.  

 

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditor’s Report. 

 

22. FRAUD’S REPORTED BY AUDITORS OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE 

CENTRAL GOVERNMENT U/S 143(12)  

 

There were no frauds reported by the auditors under section 143(12) of Companies Act, 2013 during their 

course of audit for the financial year 2024-2025. 

 

23. INTERNAL AUDITOR  

 

In terms of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, an internal auditor is required to be appointed by every 

listed company and such other class of companies as prescribed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. During 

the financial year 2024-25, the Company did not meet the applicability thresholds specified under Section 

138. Consequently, no internal auditor has been appointed for financial year 2024-25. 

 

24. COST AUDITOR 

 

Section 148 read with Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, of 

the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. Hence, the Board of Directors of your company 

had not appointed Cost Auditor for obtaining Cost Audit Report of the company for the financial year 2024- 

25. 

 

https://influxhealthtech.com/investor-relations/
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25. DISCLOSURES AS MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS UNDER SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 148 OF 

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013  

 

The Company falls within the ambit of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, as it is required to 

maintain cost records, and it has duly prepared and maintained such cost records in compliance with the 

applicable statutory provisions. 

 

26. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

 

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, every listed company and certain classes of public 

companies meeting prescribed thresholds are required to annex a secretarial audit report to their Board’s 

report. For the financial year 2024-25, the Company did not meet the applicability criteria relating to listing 

status, paid-up share capital, turnover or borrowings as specified under Section 204. Consequently, no 

secretarial auditor has been appointed for financial year 2024-25. 

 

Furthermore, pursuant to Regulation 15(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, Regulation 24A concerning Secretarial Auditor and Secretarial Compliance Report is not 

applicable to companies listed on the SME Exchange. Consequently, the Company is not required to take 

approval of shareholders at the said Annual General Meeting. 

 

However, The Audit Committee and the Board would consider the appointment of Secretarial auditor for FY 

2025-26 in due course and the same would be intimated accordingly. 

 

27. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 

The Company’s internal control systems are adequate and commensurate with the nature and size of the 

Company, and it ensures:  

• Timely and accurate financial reporting in accordance with applicable accounting standards.  

• Optimum utilization, efficient monitoring, timely maintenance and safety of its assets.  

• Compliance with applicable laws, regulations and management policies.  

 

28. EMPLOYEES’ STOCK OPTION PLAN 

 

The Company has not provided stock options to any employee during the period. 

 

29. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

 

The Company has laid down the procedure to inform the Board about the risk assessment and minimization 

procedures. These procedures are reviewed by the Board annually to ensure that there is timely 

identification and assessment of risks, measures to mitigate them, and mechanisms for their proper and 

timely monitoring and reporting.  
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The Company does not fall under the ambit of top 1000 listed entities, determined on the basis of market 

capitalization as at the end of the immediately preceding financial year. Hence, compliance under Regulation 

21 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable. 

 

30. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 

As per regulation 15(2) of the Listing Regulation, the Compliance with the Corporate Governance provisions 

shall not apply in respect of the following class of the Companies: 

 

a. Listed entity having paid up equity share capital not exceeding INR 10 Crore and Net worth not 

exceeding INR 25 Crore, as on the last day of the previous financial year; 

 

b. Listed entity which has listed its specified securities on the SME Exchange. 

 

Since, our Company falls in the ambit of aforesaid exemption (b); hence compliance with the provisions of 

Corporate Governance shall not apply to the Company and it does not form the part of the Annual Report for 

the financial year 2024-25. 

 

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis 

and were in the ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant related party transactions 

made by the company with related parties which may have potential conflict with the interest of the company 

at large. Your directors draw your attention to notes to the financial statements for detailed related parties’ 

transactions entered during the year. 

 

Accordingly, as per third proviso to Section 188(1) of the Act, required approvals of the Board or Members 

/ Shareholders has been obtained for such transactions. However, as part of good corporate governance, all 

related party transactions covered under Section 188 of the Act are approved by the Audit committee and 

Board of directors.  

 

The form AOC- 2 is attached as Annexure - III with this report. 

 

32. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 

In compliance with the provisions of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate 

Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company has adopted Corporate Social Responsibility Policy. 

In order to implement CSR Policy, the Company has constituted CSR Committee. The brief outline of the 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company, Constitution Committee, the initiatives 

undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during the year and other disclosures are set out in Annexure-

IV of this report in the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 

2014. 
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The company, through its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiative, remains committed to 

developmental projects that focus on eradicating hunger, Promoting Education and healthcare for 

underprivileged sections of society and other stakeholders. By addressing the basic needs of local 

communities, the company continues to foster value creation within the society and the regions it serves. 

Through its services, conduct, and initiatives, it actively promotes sustained growth for the community and 

fulfills its role as a socially responsible corporate entity. 

 

33. POLICIES OF THE COMPANY 

 

➢ Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) formulates and recommends to the Board the 

appropriate qualifications, positive attributes, characteristics, skills and experience required for the Board 

as a whole and its individual members with the objective of having a Board with diverse backgrounds and 

experience in business, government, education and public service. The Policy for Nomination and 

remuneration of Directors and determining Directors’ independence is available on our website at 

https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Nomination-and-Remuneration-Policy-1.pdf 

 

The committee inter alia ensures that: 

 

a. The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 

motivate directors and key managerial personnel of the quality required to run the company 

successfully.  

b. relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 

benchmarks and relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate 

performance benchmarks and 

c. remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance 

between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate 

to the working of the company and its goals. 

 

➢ Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transaction 

 

Your Company has adopted the policy on Materiality of Related Party Transaction to set out the dealing with 

the transaction between the Company and its related parties. The Policy on Materiality of Related Party 

Transaction has been available on the website of the Company at https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-

content/uploads/2024/08/Policy-on-Materiality-of-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf 

 

➢ Policy of Code of Conduct for Director and Senior Management 

 

Your Company has adopted the policy of code of Conduct to maintain standard of business conduct and 

ensure compliance with legal requirements. The Policy on Code of Conduct for Director and Senior 

Management has been available on the website of the Company at https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-

content/uploads/2024/08/Code-of-Conduct-of-Board-Senior-Management.pdf 

https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Nomination-and-Remuneration-Policy-1.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Policy-on-Materiality-of-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Policy-on-Materiality-of-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Code-of-Conduct-of-Board-Senior-Management.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Code-of-Conduct-of-Board-Senior-Management.pdf
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➢ Prohibition of Insider Trading 

 

Pursuant to provisions of the regulations, the Board has formulated and implemented a Code of Conduct to 

regulate, monitor and report trading by employees and other connected persons and code of practices and 

procedure for fair disclosure of unpublished price Sensitive Information. The same has been available on the 

website of the Company at https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Prohibition-of-

Insider-Trading-Policy.pdf 

 

➢ Policy On the Preservation of Documents and Archive Policy 

 

Pursuant to provision of the regulations, the board has formulated the policy on the Preservation of 

Documents & Archive policy. The same has been available at the website of company at 

https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Policy-for-Preservation-of-Documents.pdf 

 

➢ Dividend Distribution Policy 

  

Pursuant to Provisions of Regulations, the Company has adopted the Dividend Distribution Policy, which 

covers various parameters based on which the Board may recommend or declare Dividend. The same has 

been available at the website of company at https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-

content/uploads/2024/08/Dividend-Distribution-Policy.pdf 

 

➢ Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Mechanism 

 

Your Company has framed a Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if 

any. The Vigil Mechanism has been available on the website of the Company at 

https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf 

 

 

➢ Policy On Determination and Disclosure of Materiality of Events and Information 

 

Your Company has adopted a Policy on Determination and Disclosure of Materiality of Events and 

Information. The Policy on Determination and Disclosure of Materiality of Events and Information has been 

available on the website of the Company at https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-

content/uploads/2024/08/Policy-for-Disclosure-Determination-of-Materiality-of-Events-or-

Information.pdf 

 

➢ Policy On Identification of Group Companies & Material Creditors and material litigations 

 

Your Company has adopted a Policy on Identification of Group Companies & Material Creditors and material 

litigations. Policy On Identification of Group Companies & Material Creditors and material litigations has 

been available on the website of the Company at https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-

https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Prohibition-of-Insider-Trading-Policy.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Prohibition-of-Insider-Trading-Policy.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Policy-for-Preservation-of-Documents.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Dividend-Distribution-Policy.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Dividend-Distribution-Policy.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Policy-for-Disclosure-Determination-of-Materiality-of-Events-or-Information.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Policy-for-Disclosure-Determination-of-Materiality-of-Events-or-Information.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Policy-for-Disclosure-Determination-of-Materiality-of-Events-or-Information.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Policy-on-Identification-of-Group-Companies-Material-Creditors-and-Material-Litigations.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

43 | P a g e  

 

content/uploads/2024/08/Policy-on-Identification-of-Group-Companies-Material-Creditors-and-Material-

Litigations.pdf 

 

➢ Policy of making Payments to Non-Executive Directors 

 

Your Company has adopted a Policy of making Payments to Non-Executive Directors. Policy of making 

Payments to Non-Executive Directors has been available on the website of the Company at 

https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Policy-of-Making-Payments-to-Non-

Executive-Directors.pdf 

 

➢ Code of Conduct of Board & Senior Management 

 

Your Company has adopted code of conduct of Board & Senior Management. The Code of Conduct of Board 

& Senior Management has been available on the website of the company at 

https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Code-of-Conduct-of-Board-Senior-

Management.pdf 

 

34. SECRETARIAL STANDARD  

 

Your directors’ states that they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the Secretarial 

Standards and that such system are adequate and operating effectively. 

 

35. OTHER REGULATORY REQUIREMENT  

 

The Company has been complied with all regulatory requirements of central government and state 

government and there were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or 

Tribunals during the year impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future. 

 

36. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

 

A AGM: Day, Date, Time and Venue Tuesday, September 9, 2025, at 12:00 P.M through 

V.C 

B Financial Year 2024-25 

C Cut-off date for the purpose of determining 

shareholders for voting 

September 3, 2025 

D Listing on Stock Exchanges NSE-Emerge 

E Scrip Code/Symbol INFLUX 

F ISIN INE0MYZ01012 

G Payment of Listing Fees The Company confirms that it has paid Annual 

Listing fees due to the stock exchange. 

H Market Price Data (High, Low during each 

month in last financial year 2024-25) 

Not Applicable as the Company is listed on June 25, 

2025. 

I Registrar and Share Transfer Agents Maashitla Securities Private Limited 

https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Policy-on-Identification-of-Group-Companies-Material-Creditors-and-Material-Litigations.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Policy-on-Identification-of-Group-Companies-Material-Creditors-and-Material-Litigations.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Policy-of-Making-Payments-to-Non-Executive-Directors.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Policy-of-Making-Payments-to-Non-Executive-Directors.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Code-of-Conduct-of-Board-Senior-Management.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Code-of-Conduct-of-Board-Senior-Management.pdf
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37. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013  

 

In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place a new act The Sexual Harassment of Women 

at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 has been notified on 9th December, 2013. 

Under the said Act every company is required to set up an Internal Complaints Committee to look into 

complaints relating to sexual harassment at workplace of any women employee. 

 

The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its employees during the 

year under review. The Company has adopted a policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at 

workplace and has set up Committee for implementation of said policy. During the year Company has not 

received any complaint of harassment. Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment has been available on the 

website of the Company at https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Prevention-of-

Sexual-Harrassment-Policy.pdf 

 

Details of Complaints of Sexual Harassment Received During Year: 

 

Number of Complaints of Sexual 

Harassment Received During the 

Year 

Number of complaints disposed 

off during the year 

Number of Cases Pending for 

More than Ninety Days 

0 0 0 

 

The Company has not received any complaints of workplace complaints, including complaints on sexual 

harassment during the year under review. 

 

38. MATERNITY BENEFIT PROVIDED BY THE COMPANY UNDER MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT 1961 

 

The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of maternity benefits in fostering a supportive and 

inclusive workplace. In accordance with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, and the company’s 

commitment to employee welfare, we continue to ensure that all eligible female employees receive maternity 

benefits as prescribed under the law. 

 

39. TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Investor Education and Protection 

Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, as amended, (‘Rules’), the dividends, 

unclaimed for a consecutive period of seven years from the date of transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account 

of the Company are liable to be transferred to IEPF. Further, the shares (excluding the disputed cases having 

specific orders of the Court, Tribunal or any Statutory Authority restraining such transfer) pertaining to 

which dividend remains unclaimed for a period of continuous seven years from the date of transfer of the 

dividend to the unpaid dividend account are also mandatorily required to be transferred to the IEPF 

established by the Central Government.  

https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Prevention-of-Sexual-Harrassment-Policy.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Prevention-of-Sexual-Harrassment-Policy.pdf
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Any person whose unclaimed dividend and shares pertaining thereto, matured deposits, matured 

debentures, application money due for refund, or interest thereon, sale proceeds of fractional shares, 

redemption proceeds of preference shares, amongst others has been transferred to the IEPF Fund can claim 

their due amount from the IEPF Authority by making an electronic application in e-form IEPF-5. Upon 

submitting a duly completed form, Shareholders are required to take a print of the same and send physical 

copy duly signed along with requisite documents as specified in the form to the attention of the Nodal Officer, 

at the Registered Office of the Company. The e-form can be downloaded from the website of Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs www.iepf.gov.in. 

 

Shareholders are requested to get in touch with the RTA for encashing the unclaimed 

dividend/interest/principal amount, if any, standing to the credit of their account. 

 

During the year, no amount of unclaimed dividend has been transferred to IEPF. 

 

40. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY 

AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 AND THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

 

There were no applications which are made by or against the company under The Insolvency and Bankruptcy 

Code, 2016 during the year. 

 

41. AUDIT TRAIL APPLICABILITY (AUDIT AND AUDITORS) RULES 2014 - RULE 11 OF THE COMPANIES 

ACT 2013  

 

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 

throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares.  

 

42. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL LITIGATIONS AND ORDER 

 

During the year, there were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which 

would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

 

43. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE 

TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR 

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THERE OF 

 

As Company has not done any one-time settlement during the year under review hence no disclosure is 

required. 

 

 

 

 

http://www.iepf.gov.in/
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Place: Mumbai 

Sd/-                                                                

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed Chandniwala 

Whole-time Director 

DIN: 08459623 

Sd/- 

Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee Chandniwala 

Chairman and Managing Director 

DIN: 08459582 
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ANNEXURE-I 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

(a) Industry Structure and Developments 

 

India’s healthcare and wellness industry is evolving rapidly, with growing demand for certified, innovation 

led manufacturing across nutraceuticals, cosmetics, ayurvedic, veterinary, and homecare products. Influx 

Healthtech Limited, operating in the contract development and manufacturing (CDMO) space, is well 

positioned to capitalize on this trend, leveraging its globally certified facilities, strong R&D capabilities, and 

presence across four continents. Industry shifts toward clean-label formulations, functional cosmetics, and 

AYUSH-backed herbal products offer significant growth opportunities, while Influx’s investments in 

automation, capacity expansion, and sustainability ensure it remains a competitive leader in this dynamic 

sector. 

 

(b) Opportunities and Threats 

 

Opportunities: 

 

1. Growing Consumer Demand for Innovation: Consumer demand for new, innovative products 

continues to grow, particularly in the dietary/nutritional and cosmetics segments. The Company is 

well-positioned to capitalize on this trend by focusing on R&D and product innovation. 

 

2. Rising Demand in Emerging Markets: The Company has identified emerging markets, particularly 

covered all Indian market and then in Asia and Africa, as areas for significant growth. These markets 

are experiencing an increase in disposable income and consumer demand for health-related and 

wellness products. 

 

3. Geographic and Market Expansion: The Company plans to expand its footprint in international 

markets. As part of its strategy, it is exploring entry into additional countries, where demand for the 

Company’s products is expected to rise. 

 

4. Innovation and New Product Development: Continuous innovation and new product launches 

represent a major growth opportunity. The Company has a robust pipeline of products slated for 

release in the coming fiscal years, which are gaining traction. 

 
Threats:  

 

1. Low Consumer Awareness: In certain markets, especially emerging economies, consumer 

awareness of the Company’s products is still developing. This could pose a challenge to sales growth, 

especially in new geographic regions. 
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2. Government Scheme Delays: The Company’s business in certain segments, such as veterinary 

feeds, may be impacted by delays in the implementation of government schemes and regulations, 

which could affect the timely release of new products. 

 

3. Professional Skill Shortage: The Company’s ability to innovate and maintain high operational 

standards is challenged by the shortage of skilled professionals in certain markets. This can 

potentially slow down product development and impact growth. 

 
(c) Segment–wise or Product-wise Performance 

 

• Nutraceuticals 

o Contributed approximately 89.7% of total revenue 

o Growth driven by rising demand for functional supplements, gummies, protein bars, and 

wellness products 

o Strong export traction due to clean-label and certified formulations 

• Cosmetics 

o Accounted for 6.1% of revenue 

o Increased sales of skincare creams, personal care items, and cosmetic jellies 

o Benefited from rising interest in premium, herbal, and vegan beauty products 

• Ayurvedic & Herbal Products 

o Contributed 3.1% of revenue 

o Boosted by government AYUSH initiatives and consumer preference for natural remedies 

o Includes herbal tablets, oils, and traditional formulations 

• Veterinary Feed Supplements 

o Represented 1.05% of revenue 

o Steady growth in animal health solutions, especially for poultry and livestock 

o Includes mineral mixtures and nutritional additives 

• Homecare Products 

o Minimal but emerging segment at 0.06% of revenue 

o Includes eco-friendly cleaning solutions and personal hygiene items 

o Niche formulations with potential for strategic expansion 

 

 

(d) Outlook 

 

Influx Healthtech Limited enters the upcoming fiscal year with a strong foundation and a clear growth 

trajectory. The company aims to expand its manufacturing capacity across nutraceuticals, veterinary feed 

supplements, cosmetics, and homecare products, supported by proceeds from its successful IPO. With 

increasing global demand for certified, clean-label wellness products and rising interest in preventive 

healthcare, Influx is well-positioned to deepen its international footprint and diversify its client base. 

Strategic investments in automation, R&D, and sustainable packaging will further enhance operational 

efficiency and product innovation. Backed by robust financials and a scalable business model, the company 



 

 

 

 

 

49 | P a g e  

 

anticipates continued momentum in revenue growth and margin improvement, reinforcing its role as a 

leading CDMO in the wellness sector. 

 

(e) Risk and Concerns 

 

Influx Healthtech Limited faces competition and pricing pressure in the fragmented CDMO market, with 

revenue heavily concentrated in nutraceuticals and a limited client base. Margin volatility from raw-material, 

supply-chain and forex swings, evolving FSSAI, AYUSH and US FDA regulations, plus execution risks in 

capacity expansion, automation and ESG compliance, underscore the need for agile innovation and robust 

quality controls. 

 

(f) Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy 

 

The company has implemented robust internal control systems that ensure efficient operations, compliance 

with laws and regulations, and the reliability of financial reporting. Regular audits and reviews are conducted 

to assess the adequacy of these systems, with improvements made as necessary to address any identified 

weaknesses. The internal control framework is deemed adequate and effective in mitigating risks. 

 

(g) Discussion on Financial Performance with Respect to Operational Performance 

 

The company’s financial performance has been strong, with revenue growth driven by increased sales across 

key product segments. Operational efficiency initiatives have resulted in improved margins, despite 

fluctuations in raw material prices. Investment in technology and production capacity has also contributed 

to better operational performance, enabling the company to meet growing demand. 

 

(h) Material Developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations Front, Including Number of 

People Employed 

 

During the financial year, the company has made significant strides in strengthening its human resources. 

New training programs have been introduced to enhance employee skills, particularly in areas of quality 

control and production efficiency. Industrial relations have remained stable, with no major disruptions. The 

total number of employees as of the end of the financial year stands at 2024-25. 

 

(i) Details of Significant Changes in Key Financial Ratios 

 
Sr  

No. 

Ratios Numerator Denominator As at  

31st  

March,  

2025 

As at  

31st  

March,  

2024 

% change  

in  

Ratio 

i.  Current Ratio (in 

Times) 

Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.44 1.44 0.67% 

ii.  Debt-Equity Ratio               

(In Times) 

Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 0.006 0.014 -57.30% 

iii.  Debt Service  

Coverage Ratio 

Earnings available 

for  

Total Debt service 22,523.99 322.22 6890.32% 
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(in Times) Debt Servicing 

iv.  Return on  

Equity Ratio 

(in %) 

Profit After Taxes Average Equity 36.72 48.35 -24.05% 

v.  Inventory  

turnover ratio  

(in Times) 

Cost of Goods Sold Average Inventory 11.23 26.95 -58.33% 

vi.  Trade  

Receivables  

turnover ratio  

(In Times) 

Revenue from  

Operations 

Average Trade  

Receivables 

4.34 6.72 -35.49% 

vii.  Trade payables  

turnover ratio  

(In Times) 

Purchase of Goods  

&services and 

other  

expense 

Average Trade  

Payables 

3.84 4.99 -23.10% 

viii.  Net Capital  

Turnover Ratio  

(In Times) 

Revenue from  

Operations 

Working Capital 2.15 3.49 -38.51% 

ix.  Net Profit Ratio (in %) Net Profit After 

Taxes 

Revenue from  

Operations 

12.76% 11.15% 14.35% 

x.  Return on  

Capital  

Employed  

(in %) 

Earnings Before 

Interest  

and Tax 

Capital Employed 49.17% 64.62% -23.91% 

 

❖ Remark - Any change in the ratio by more than 25% as compared to the preceding year. 

 

Sr. No. of 

Ratio 

Reason of Variance 

ii. The Company has repaid its debts in the current year and has achieved a better 

debt-equity ratio. 

iii. The Company has repaid its interest-bearing loans and earnings in the current year 

have increased, consequently the debt service ratio has improved 

v. The Inventory Turnover ratio has decreased as the company is expecting drastic 

increase in order for the FY 2025-26 and hence the company has manufactured the 

goods in March 2025 accordingly 

vi. The average accounts receivable of the company has increased due to change in 

credit policies to boost revenue 

viii. The working capital of the company has increased but revenue has organically 

grown by 5% only since the company is operating at maximum capacity 
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ANNEXURE-II (a) 

 

Information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2)(a) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016 

 

A. Names of top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the FY24-25: 
Name of  

Employees 

Designation Remuneration  

Received 

Qualifica  

tion 

Experience 

in 

Years 

Age 

in 

year 

s 

Date of 

commencement 

of 

employment 

Last 

employme 

nt 

held 

% of  

sharehol  

ding 

Moiz 

Palgharwala 

Chief 

Operating 

Officer 

1175800 B-

PHARM 

- 36 01-06-2021 NA 0.003136% 

Anshul 

Morya 

Quality 

Control Head 

944600 MSC - 34 01-06-2021 NA - 

Mushir Khan Production – 

Employee 

692691 BSC - 43 01-10-2022 NA - 

Nafisa 

Palgharwala 

Accounts – 

Employee 

630000 BCOM - 33 01-04-2023 NA - 

Mangesh 

Mohite 

Production - 

Employee 

629666 BSC - 51 01-06-2023 NA - 

Rachana 

Parab 

Business 

Development 

– Employee 

627951 BCOM - 32 01-06-2021 NA - 

Prashant 

Tare 

Business 

Development 

– Employee 

626656 BCOM - 49 01-02-2023 NA - 

Nafisa 

Chandniwala 

Accounts – 

Employee 

602500 M-COM 

PART-1 

- 46 01-11-2022 NA 0.003136% 

Ramdas Nair Accounts – 

Employee 

532150 BCOM - 49 09-04-2024 NA - 

Vrunda 

Bhokare 

Production - 

Employee 

503533 HSC - 46 01-06-2021 NA - 

 

B. None of the employees is related to the directors of the Company. 
 

C. Names of other employees who are in receipt of aggregate remuneration of not less than rupees one 
crore and two lakhs during the FY24-25 or not less than rupees eight lakh and fifty thousand per month 
(if employed for part of the FY24-25): NA 

 

D. If employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year 

which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn 

by the managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his 

spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the company: NA 
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ANNEXURE-II (b) 
 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEE 

Information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016 

 

i. The Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of 

the Company for the financial year 2024-25 and 

ii. The percentage Increase in remuneration of each Director, Managing Director, Chief Financial 

Officer and Company Secretary of the Company in the financial year 2024-25. 

 

(Rs. In Lakhs, unless otherwise Stated) 

Name & Designation Remuneration of 

each Director & KMP 

for Financial 2024–

25 

% increase / 

decrease in 

remuneration each 

Financial Year 2024-

25 

Ratio of remuneration 

of each Directors to 

median remuneration 

employees 

Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee 

Chandniwala (MD) 

84.00 40.00% 409.76 

Mrs. Shirin Munir 

Ahmed Chandniwala 

(WTD) 

16.00 - 78.05 

Mr. Ashish Shah (CFO) 10.03 11.57% 48.93 

Mr. Atul Shukla (CS) 4.60 - 22.44 

 

MD - Managing Director, WTD – Whole-time Director, CFO – Chief Financial Officer; CS – Company Secretary. 

 

iii. The percentage increase / decrease in the median remuneration of employees in the financial 

year 2024-25. 

Particular Financial year 2024-25 Financial year 2023-

24 

Increase /(Decrease) 

Median remuneration 

of all employees 

20,500 18,000 13.89% 

 

Note: The calculation of % Increase/decrease in the median remuneration has been done based on 

comparable employees. 

 

 

iv. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company. 

 

There were 178 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2025. 
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v. Average percentiles increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase 

in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any 

exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration. 

 

Average percentiles increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 

personnel in the last financial year: 15.00% 

 

Average increase in remuneration of KMPs: 66.15%. 

 

Comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration: 48.075% 

 

vi. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company 

 

Pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xii) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014, it is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, KMPs, Senior Management and 

other employees of the Company is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
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ANNEXURE-III 
FORM NO. AOC-2 

 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 

8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 

parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 

length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis 

 

All contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) 

of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are at arm’s length basis. 

 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis 

 

All the transactions were entered by the Company in ordinary course of business and were in arm's length 

basis: 

(Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Name of  

Related  

Party 

Nature of  

relationship 

Nature of  

Contract /  

agreement /  

transactions 

Duration of  

contracts /  

agreements  

/  

transactions 

Salient 

terms of  

contracts or  

agreements, 

or  

transactions  

including 

the  

value 

Date(s) 

of  

approval  

by the  

Board, if  

any: 

Amount  

paid as  

advances  

(Rs. In  

Lakhs) 

Mr. Munir 

Abdul Ganee 

Chandniwala 

Managing 

Director 

Remuneration 

of Rs. 84.00 

April 1, 2024 

to March 31, 

2025 

- April 1, 

2024 

- 

Mr. Munir 

Abdul Ganee 

Chandniwala 

Managing 

Director 

Loan Taken of 

Rs. 15.16 

April 1, 2024 

to March 31, 

2025 

- April 1, 

2024 

- 

Mr. Munir 

Abdul Ganee 

Chandniwala 

Managing 

Director 

Loan Repaid of 

Rs. 20.44 

April 1, 2024 

to March 31, 

2025 

- April 1, 

2024 

- 

Mr. Munir 

Abdul Ganee 

Chandniwala 

Managing 

Director 

Rent Paid of Rs. 

90.00 

April 1, 2024 

to March 31, 

2025 

- April 1, 

2024 

- 
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Mr. Munir 

Abdul Ganee 

Chandniwala 

Managing 

Director 

Advance for 

Plot No. 59 of 

Rs. 11.00 

- - April 1, 

2024 

11.00 

Mr. Munir 

Abdul Ganee 

Chandniwala 

Managing 

Director 

Advance for 

Plot No. 28 of 

Rs. 10.00 

- - April 1, 

2024 

10.00 

Mrs. Shirin 

Munir Ahmed 

Chandniwala 

Whole – 

Time 

Director 

Remuneration 

of Rs. 16.00 

April 1, 2024 

to March 31, 

2025 

- April 1, 

2024 

- 

Mrs. Shirin 

Munir Ahmed 

Chandniwala 

Whole – 

Time 

Director 

Loan Repaid of 

Rs. 2.00 

April 1, 2024 

to March 31, 

2025 

- April 1, 

2024 

- 

Mrs. Shirin 

Munir Ahmed 

Chandniwala 

Whole – 

Time 

Director 

Rent Paid of Rs. 

12.00 

April 1, 2024 

to March 31, 

2025 

- April 1, 

2024 

- 

Mr. Ashish 

Shah 

Chief 

Financial 

officer 

Remuneration 

of Rs. 10.03 

April 1, 2024 

to March 31, 

2025 

- April 1, 

2024 

- 

Mr. Ashish 

Shah 

Chief 

Financial 

officer 

Loan Given of 

Rs. 2.00 

April 1, 2024 

to March 31, 

2025 

- April 1, 

2024 

- 

Mr. Ashish 

Shah 

Chief 

Financial 

officer 

Loan Recovered 

of Rs. 2.00 

April 1, 2024 

to March 31, 

2025 

- April 1, 

2024 

- 

Mr. Atul Shukla Company 

Secretary 

Remuneration 

of Rs. 4.60 

April 1, 2024 

to March 31, 

2025 

- April 1, 

2024 

- 

Trusan 

Printpack 

Private 

Limited 

Other 

Related 

Party 

Sale of Product 

of Rs. 1.70 

April 1, 2024 

to March 31, 

2025 

- April 1, 

2024 

- 

Trusan 

Printpack 

Private 

Limited 

Other 

Related 

Party 

Purchase of 

Product of Rs. 

220.21 

April 1, 2024 

to March 31, 

2025 

- April 1, 

2024 

- 

Trusan 

Printpack 

Private 

Limited 

Other 

Related 

Party 

Rent Income of 

Rs. 3.60 

April 1, 2024 

to March 31, 

2025 

- April 1, 

2024 

- 

Trusan 

Printpack 

Other 

Related 

Party 

Reimbursement 

of Expense of 

Rs. 0.09 

April 1, 2024 

to March 31, 

2025 

- April 1, 

2024 

- 
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Private 

Limited 

Influx 

Foundation 

Other 

Related 

Party 

Donation of Rs. 

0.85 

April 1, 2024 

to March 31, 

2025 

- April 1, 

2024 

- 

Nutrapharm 

India 

Other 

Related 

Party 

Sale of Product 

of Rs. 0.02 

April 1, 2024 

to March 31, 

2025 

- April 1, 

2024 

- 

 

The Company has entered into contracts or arrangements with related parties as referred to in Section 

188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. However, all such transactions are entered into in the ordinary course 

of business and in the option of the Board all such transaction are at arm’s length. Accordingly, by virtue of 

third proviso to Section 188(1) of the Act, no approval of the Board or General Meeting as referred to in 

Section 188(1) and its first proviso is required for such transactions. However, as part of good corporate 

governance, all related party transactions covered under section 188 of the Act are approved by the Audit 

committee. 
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Annexure - IV 
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities 

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013] 

 

1. Brief Outline of CSR Policy of the Company: 

 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is a significant part of our overall sustainability policy, encompassing 

social, economic, and environmental actions. The policy aims to demonstrate care for the community 

through its focus on education, healthcare, community development projects/programs, etc., and to 

support local institutions/NGOs in addressing the needs of marginalized and underserved communities to 

help them become self-reliant. These efforts are preferably undertaken in the local area and around our 

work centers/project sites, or in other areas if public needs so demand. 

 

The Company approaches CSR strategically to ensure a sustainable future for people and the planet. By 

focusing our talent, technology, and capital on social welfare, healthcare issues, and educational concerns, 

we strive to enact positive social change in society. 

 

The Company demonstrate Its commitment to social development by dedicating resources and efforts to 

meaningful CSR programs. The initiatives are aligned with Indian legal requirements and focus on the fields 

of education and healthcare, executed through our implementing agencies: 

 

• Bombay NW Rotary PUB Cha Trust 

• Hasaniya Healthcare Sarvajanik Trust 

• Womb Foundation 

• Jeevan Jyoti Educational Society 

 

The projects/programmes/activities undertaken or to be undertaken will be within the broad framework 

of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

 

The CSR Committee is responsible for overseeing the execution of the Company’s CSR Policy. Pursuant to 

the provisions of Section 135(1) of the Act, the Board has set up the CSR Committee. The details of the CSR 

Committee members and meetings held during the financial year 2024-25 are as follows: 

Name of the Director Status in the  

Committee 

Nature of  

Directorship 

No. of 

committee 

Meetings Held 

& Entitled to 

Attend 

No. of 

committee 

Meetings 

Attended 

Mr. Munir Abdul Ganee 

Chandniwala 

Chairman Chairman and 

Managing 

Director 

2 2 
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Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain Member Independent 

Director 

2 2 

Mrs. Shirin Munir Ahmed 

Chandniwala 

Member Whole Time 

Director 

2 2 

 

3. Web-Link for CSR Disclosure: 

 

The Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy, and CSR projects approved by the Board are disclosed on 

the company’s website at: https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Corporate-Social-

Responsibility-Policy.pdf 

 

4. Impact Assessment of CSR Projects: 

 

Details of the impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the 

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not 

Applicable 

 

5. Details of Amount Available for Set-off:  

 

Not Applicable 

 

6. Average Net Profit of the Company: 

 

Average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5): Rs. 10,28,00,196/- 

 

7. CSR Obligation for the Financial Year: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars Amount 

a. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 

Section 135(5) 

Rs. 20,56,000/- 

b. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 

activities of the previous financial years 

Nil 

c. Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any Nil 

d. Total CSR obligation for the financial year (a+b-c) Rs. 20,56,000/- 

 

8. CSR Amount Spent: 

 

(a) CSR Amount Spent or Unspent for the Financial Year: 

 

 

 

https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf
https://influxhealthtech.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf
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Total Amount 

Spent for the 

Financial Year 

(in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to  

Unspent CSR Account as per  

section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund  

specified under Schedule VII as per  

second proviso to section 135(5) 

Amount Date of 

transfer 

Name of fund Amount Date of  

transfer 

21,71,500 N.A. 

 

(b) Details of CSR Amount Spent Against Ongoing Projects for the Financial Year: There are no ongoing 

projects of the company for the financial year. 

 
N 

o. 

Nam 

e of 

the 

Proj 

ect 

Item 

from 

the 

List of 

Activi 

ties in 

Sched 

ule 

VII to 

the 

Act 

Local 

Area 

(Yes/ 

No) 

Locat 

ion of 

the 

Proje 

ct 

Proje 

ct 

Durat 

ion 

Amou 

nt 

Alloca 

ted for 

the 

Projec 

t (in 

Rs. 

) 

Amou 

nt 

Spent 

in the 

Curre 

nt 

Finan 

cial 

Year 

(in 

Rs.) 

Amount 

Transfe 

rred to 

Unspent 

CSR 

Account 

for the 

Project 

as per 

Section 

135(6) 

(in Rs.) 

Mode of 

Implement 

ation 

- 

Direct 

(Yes/No) 

Mode of 

Implement 

ation 

- 

Through 

Implement 

ing Agency 

Sta 

te 

Distr 

ict 

Na 

me 

 

CSR 

Registra 

tion 

Number 

N.A. 

 

 

(c) Details of CSR Amount Spent Against Other than Ongoing Projects for the Financial Year: 

 
S. 

No. 

Name of 

the 

Project 

Item 

from 

the 

List of 

Activiti 

es in 

Schedu 

le VII 

to the 

Act 

Local 

Area 

(Yes/No) 

Location 

of the 

Project 

Amount 

Spent for 

the 

Project 

(In 

Rs.) 

Mode of 

Implement 

ation 

- 

Direct 

(Yes/No) 

Mode of Implementation 

- 

Through 

Implementing Agency 

Name CSR 

Registration 

Number 

1. Eradicating 

Hunger and 

Promoting 

Education 

Item No. 

(i) and 

(ii) 

Yes Mumbai 12,50,000 No Jeevan Jyoti 

Educational Society  

CSR00068384 

2. Promoting 

Education 

Item No. 

(ii) 

Yes Mumbai 1,71,500 No WOMB Foundation CSR00031098 

3. Promoting 

Education 

Item No. 

(ii) 

Yes Mumbai 2,50,000 No Bombay NW Rotary 

PUB Cha Trust 

CSR00060705 

4. Promoting 

healthcare 

Item No. 

(i) 

No Himatnagar, 

Gujarat 

5,00,000 No Hasaniya 

Healthcare 

Sarvajanik Trust 

CSR00007825 
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(d) Amount Spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 

(e) Amount Spent on Impact Assessment, if Applicable: Nil 

(f) Total Amount Spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 21,71,500/- 

(g) Excess Amount for Set-off, if Any: Rs. 1,15,500/- 

 

S.  

No. 

Particulars Amount  

(In Rs.) 

i.  Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 

135(5) 

Rs. 20,56,000/- 

ii.  Total amount spent for the Financial Year (Amount available for 

set-off from preceding financial years is Rs. 5,00,000) 

Rs. 21,71,500/- 

iii.  Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii) - (i)] Rs. 1,15,500/- 

iv.  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 

activities of the previous financial years, if any 

NIL 

v.  Amount available for set-off in succeeding financial years [(iii) - 

(iv)] 

Rs. 1,15,500/- 

 

9. Details of Unspent CSR Amount: 

 

(a) Details of Unspent CSR Amount for the Preceding Three Financial Years: Nil 

(b) Details of CSR Amount Spent in the Financial Year for Ongoing Projects of the Preceding Financial 

Year(s): Nil 

 

10. Creation or Acquisition of Capital Assets: 

 

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Not Applicable  

(b) Amount of CSR Spent for Creation or Acquisition of Capital Asset: Nil  

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, 

their address etc.: Not Applicable  

(d) Details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital 

asset): Not Applicable  

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as 

per  

Section 135(5): Not Applicable 
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FINACIAL INFORMATION 
 

Particulars Page No. 

Independent Audit Report from V. B. Goel & Co. F1 

Balance sheet F16 

Profit and Loss Account F17 

Cash flow Statement F18 

Notes to Accounts F24 
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